
Meeting Minutes Planning and Zoning Commission 
September 17, 2015 Monroe, Connecticut 

Page 1 of 13 

PLANNING and ZONING COMMISSION 
Monroe, Connecticut 

 
 MEETING MINUTES 
September 17, 2015 

 
 
Meeting:  Planning and Zoning Commission 

Regular Meeting – September 17, 2015 
7 Fan Hill Road, Town Hall, Council Chambers 

 
Present:  Chairman Patrick O’Hara  

Vice Chairman William Porter 
Secretary Karen Martin 
Commissioner Dave Townson 
Commissioner Cathleen Lindstrom (alternate) 
 

Absent:   Commissioner Brian Quinn 
Commissioner Jane Flader (alternate) 

 
 
Also Present:  Will Agresta, Planning and Zoning Administrator  

Scott Schatzlein, Land Use Group Director/Town Engineer 
David McCollum, Recording Secretary 
 
 

OPENING of MEETING 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Chairman O’Hara called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m., invited those in attendance to join in 
the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

2. ROLL CALL AND SEATING OF ALTERNATES (if required) 
Commissioners were seated on a roll call, Commissioner Lindstrom was seated. 
 

3. GENERAL PUBLIC PARTICIPATION – None 
 
4. GENERAL APPOINTMENTS – None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes Planning and Zoning Commission 
September 17, 2015 Monroe, Connecticut 

Page 2 of 13 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
5. SPECIAL EXCEPTION PERMIT 

 
SEP-2015-11, File #1562A 285 Cutlers Farm Road (Wolfe Park) – Multi-Use Play Fields, Town of 
Monroe Parks & Recreation (reconvened from 07/30/15) 
 
Commissioner Martin read the notice of Public Hearing.  Chairman O’Hara read the Order of the 
Hearing of an Application and the rules of conduct for the Public Hearing.  Town Planner Agresta 
listed Exhibits 1-19. 
 
Mr. David Sacco, of TPA Design Group, was there to represent the Monroe Department of Parks 
and Recreation and present their proposed improvements for Wolfe Park.  He mentioned there 
is also an application relevant to this proposal that was opened before the Inland Wetlands 
Commission and would be heard at their public hearing on October 14th, 2015.  He requested 
that the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing remain open so the unresolved matters 
can be addressed at the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting on October 15th, 2015 
following any actions by the Inland Wetlands Commission that would require adjustments to the 
proposal.  The Commission agreed, noting that the applicant provide whatever extension which 
may be needed in coordination with staff, to which Mr. Sacco agreed. 
 
Mr. Sacco described the proposed improvements, consisting of two ball fields.  He described the 
existing conditions of the site, and showed on a map the area relative to the existing conditions 
where the improvements are being proposed.  He gave a large overview of the area and 
indicated how the proposed fields would be using two existing grass fields as the basis for the 
improvements.  He proposed that the first of the two proposed fields would be used as a 
practice field, and the second field would be for competition purposes.  He described the two 
proposed fields being connected by a pedestrian path that would be connected to the rest of 
the pedestrian walkway system within the park.  He stated that the Inland Wetlands 
Commission has approved construction access to the proposed fields by using Park View Lane, 
along an existing farm road that is already regularly used by someone who hays and maintains 
one of the existing fields.  Construction access for the proposed practice field would be from the 
existing parking area, along an existing pathway that provides close access to the proposed site, 
and crossing an established park field to gain access to the site along the existing tennis courts. 
 
Mr. Sacco indicated that the proposed locations for the fields where most logical as the 
currently exist as open areas and would require minimal intervention.  He proposed the existing 
hay field would be re-graded, that there would be no tree clearing, and that there would be no 
expansion of the existing area to accommodate the proposed field.  The grading would ensure 
the field has the proper cross-section for drainage improvements to ensure durability.  The 
proposed practice field would undergo modifications to an existing stone wall that borders the 
existing field, and that there would be tree clearing along the edges of the proposed practice 
field to expand the area and accommodate grading and drainage improvements. 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes Planning and Zoning Commission 
September 17, 2015 Monroe, Connecticut 

Page 3 of 13 

Mr. Sacco described a permanent pedestrian path route that would be used to provide access to 
the proposed western competition field.  He showed the Commission the path’s location 
relative to existing park features, specifically a children’s play-scape structure, the Wolfe Park 
Pool, and paved parking area.  He described the proposed pedestrian path would be mainly 
made with stone dust, with the path only being paved in areas where the proposed path would 
cross existing areas of Wetlands and areas subject to ponding during severe rain events.  Piped 
culverts would be used as part of the Wetlands crossings. 
 
Mr. Sacco described the principles behind the grading design of the proposed practice field.  He 
stated that the design would not require material to be removed from or introduced to the site. 
The topsoil that would be stockpiled in association with grading would be saved for future use. 
The area of the proposed competition field would be designed to accommodate a multitude of 
sports, and made larger than the minimum field size requirements of each individual sport to 
allow the fields to be striped differently.  This would allow the principal play area to be moved 
around so that the overall competition field has greater long-term durability.  The uphill slope 
could be used for spectators to congregate, and a cut-off trench would be established on the 
uphill side of the playing field with perforated pipe and stone to allow groundwater to not break 
out onto the surface of the proposed field. 
 
Mr. Sacco addressed modifications that were made to the proposal in response to feedback.  He 
stated that the proposed project is being presented again to the Inland Wetlands Commission to 
add two proposed conduits that would run underneath the proposed pedestrian pathway for 
future water supply/irrigation and electric power purposes.  This would prevent any 
unnecessary invasive activity with Regulated Upland Review and Wetlands Areas in the future.  
The proposed conduits would not increase the currently proposed area of impact.  The material 
that would be excavated in association with the conduits would be used as fill for the re-grading 
of the proposed athletic fields. 
 
Mr. Sacco addressed that no provisions would be made with this proposal to accommodate 
present or future lighting of the proposed athletic fields. 
 
Mr. Sacco described landscaping improvements that would involve an existing stone wall on the 
perimeter of the field closest to the existing tennis court.  The stone wall would be re-
established in kind along the edge of the wetlands.  The proposed stone wall would mimic the 
existing stone wall’s form.  Mr. Sacco then described the location of plantings relative to existing 
and proposed conditions, and the seeding mixes that would be used for each proposed athletic 
field. 
 
Mr. Sacco also addressed incidental work that was made a requirement from the Inland 
Wetlands Commission.  He described an existing gravel-surfaced parking lot, and the Inland 
Wetlands Commission’s request to provide wetlands protection from surface run-off.  A berm 
would be constructed between the edge of the gravel-surfaced parking lot and wetlands areas. 
He elaborated on discussions with Town Staff that were concerned the aesthetic appeal of the 
berm relative to the berm’s ability to handle ground water and surface run-off. 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes Planning and Zoning Commission 
September 17, 2015 Monroe, Connecticut 

Page 4 of 13 

Mr. Sacco addressed the issue of accessibility between the two proposed athletic fields.  He 
anticipated that the public would access the proposed practice field by walking parallel to the 
existing tennis courts.  Mr. Sacco then addressed the proposal’s lack of inclusion of a permanent 
pedestrian path between two proposed athletic fields.  He presented his idea to monitor how 
the fields are being used over an extended period of time, and the public’s ability to establish 
and identify a common walkway to accommodate their needs, and then at that time an path 
alignment could be developed. 
 
Mr. Sacco showed the Commission plan details of the cross sections of the proposed pedestrian 
walkway and infiltration trenches. 
 
Mr. Sacco cited the public and Staff concerns of how the proposed site was going to be 
accessed.  He stressed on his attempt to minimize the amount of traffic that would be made 
with regards to the proposed project’s construction.  He stated that specialized materials would 
need to be brought in off-site to facilitate the project’s construction, and how that would be the 
principal source of traffic.  Daily traffic would be required to use the existing parking facilities 
and access the proposed construction site by foot.  Vehicular traffic to the proposed work site 
would be for the sole purpose of delivering and removing construction materials and 
equipment.  He anticipated that 54 trips would be made to support the west field project, and 
27 trips would be made to support the practice field project.  He anticipated that traffic to 
access the west field would use Park View Lane, stating that the existing road surface sees 
relatively heavy traffic several times per year.  He then showed the Commission pictures of the 
paths that would be access the proposed athletic fields. 
 
Mr. Sacco described the existing conditions regarding the proposed access ways for 
construction.  He stated that the areas surrounding the proposed access ways would be 
protected with appropriate silt and erosion controls.  The construction work associated with the 
proposal would be conducted during drier times of the year, which would make any disturbance 
minimal and earthwork easier.  Mr. Sacco then showed the Planning and Zoning Commission 
alternative proposals for vehicular access. 
 
Mr. Sacco said that impacts would be kept low.  The proposed pedestrian path is intended to 
meander between existing trees, and that it would likely support mowers and pickup trucks.  He 
stated that it would be possible to make the proposed pedestrian path wider to support larger 
vehicles and weight and prevent the edge of the pavement from decaying.  Mr. Sacco addressed 
measures being considered to minimize the removal of trees and excavation of soil.  He also 
mentioned the playscape as a concern, and stated that protection would have to be provided 
between the playscape and construction’s access to the proposed site. 
 
Mr. Sacco added further comments on the public’s current use of streets surrounding the 
proposed work site to access Wolfe Park.  He does not want to encourage excess or 
inappropriate use of Park View Lane, and explained that regular traffic will use existing parking 
areas, and that Farm View Road and Great Hollow Road would only be used as a means to get 
material in and out. 
 
 



Meeting Minutes Planning and Zoning Commission 
September 17, 2015 Monroe, Connecticut 

Page 5 of 13 

Vice-Chairman Porter asked about the slope at the end of Park View Road, going towards the 
farm road.  Mr. Sacco replied that the slope was fairly steep, at approximately ten percent with 
a gravel surface.  Mr. Sacco anticipated a construction entrance with riprap to control sediment 
dispersal.  Vice-Chairman Porter asked how that would be maintained on a ten percent grade. 
Mr. Sacco responded that the slope would be a problem if a large amount of trucks were to 
access the proposed site every day but only a limited number of trips are being planned and 
those would be distributed throughout the overall construction process. 
 
Chairman O’Hara asked Mr. Sacco if his presentation had concluded, and Mr. Sacco stated his 
presentation of the proposal was finished. Chairman O’Hara then opened the presentation to 
questions by the Commission. 
 
Secretary Martin inquired about the bathrooms and their location relative to the proposed 
fields.  Commissioner Lindstrom asked if portalets would be installed to accommodate the fields. 
Mr. Sacco replied that he has not discussed that with the Parks and Recreation Department.  
Secretary Martin was concerned about the distance from the existing bathrooms to the 
proposed fields.  Chairman O’Hara asked how far the bathrooms were from the proposed site. 
Mr. Sacco said the bathrooms were approximately 1,150 feet away. 
 
Commissioner Lindstrom asked if bleachers were proposed.  Mr. Sacco responded that the slope 
along the edge of the fields would accommodate spectators. 
 
Chairman O’Hara asked to see the diagram of the stone walls.  He did not agree with Mr. Sacco’s 
characterization of the stone walls’ current state.  He asked for clarification on the written 
narrative of the stone walls, stating that Monroe’s Plan of Conservation and Development 
includes the preservation of items such as stone walls.  Chairman O’Hara requested that the 
stone walls be fixed and maintained in a manner consistent with what a stone wall should look 
like. 
 
Chairman O’Hara addressed issues related of the lack of portalets for use in Wolfe Park.  He then 
inquired about emergency vehicles using the proposed permanent pedestrian path to access the 
proposed fields.  Mr. Sacco replied that the path would be wide enough and graded to 
accommodate an emergency vehicle.  Chairman O’Hara asked if the path would also be wide 
enough to accommodate vehicles associated with portalet maintenance.  Mr. Sacco indicated 
that would be probable. 
 
Chairman O’Hara asked Mr. Sacco if he had seen a sunken road along the bottom of the western 
proposed athletic field.  Chairman O’Hara stated that sunken roads are a historic feature, and 
asked if a fence outlying the area of the practice field could be installed to protect that area.  
Mr. Sacco replied that he would discuss the installation of a fence, and that a fence was 
something that was not anticipated. 
 
Chairman O’Hara indicated the need for future and potential additions that were not otherwise 
addressed on the proposed plans be included. 
 
 



Meeting Minutes Planning and Zoning Commission 
September 17, 2015 Monroe, Connecticut 

Page 6 of 13 

Chairman O’Hara addressed his concerns regarding the surface of the farm road off of Park View 
Lane.  He asked if the opinion of the construction vehicle drivers had been considered, and 
whether they would drive over the surface of the farm road without geo-tech fabric and stone. 
Mr. Sacco replied that the construction would not be conducted during the wetter times of the 
year, and agreed that the work would be difficult to perform in wet conditions.  He stated that 
the underlying soils were stony and gravelly, and that the site’s conditions did not indicate any 
structural deficiencies that would not allow them to support the load. 
 
Chairman O’Hara responded that Mr. Sacco’s narrative indicated that crushed stone and filter 
fabric could be used to minimize damage in the wettest sections.  Chairman O’Hara asked Mr. 
Sacco if a contractor had been out to the site to review the farm road’s suitability for 
construction access in its current condition.  Mr. Sacco replied that a contractor had not been 
out to the site for review, and stated that Monroe Public Works had moved equipment along 
that farm road to access test pits.  He added that a contractor could be required to make smaller 
shipments of material if necessary. 
 
Chairman O’Hara asked Mr. Sacco what the duration of construction for the project would be.  
Under ideal conditions, Mr. Sacco replied that he anticipated a month and a half would be 
needed.  Chairman O’Hara asked if a single, full-sized road could be constructed in replacement 
of the proposed path to alleviate his concerns relating to the farm road’s suitability.  Mr. Sacco 
described that alternative had not been considered because the path would have to be 
widened, trees removed and the cost to develop such a path to support that load would be 
increased. 
 
Chairman O’Hara asked Mr. Sacco to confirm the number of spaces in the overflow gravel lot, 
and if the number of spaces was determined based on the lot’s dimensions.  Mr. Sacco stated 
that the parking configuration and driving lanes are not established.  Chairman O’Hara inquired 
if a permit had been procured for the parking lot, and asked how the number of parking spaces 
could be determined if a permit was not available for reference. 
 
Commissioner Lindstrom asked if Mr. Sacco could ascertain if the parking lot or associated 
lighting structures had ever been permitted.  Chairman O’Hara added that with the additional 
proposed football fields, there will be an expanded need for parking and use of the overflow 
parking lot could intensify. 
 
Chairman O’Hara referenced Planner Agresta’s review comments indicating the Commission’s 
need to consider granting the waiver of an A-2 survey.  He asked the other Commissioners if 
they had any questions relevant to whether the waiver should be granted.  The other 
Commissioners agreed that the requirement could be waived. 
 
Secretary Martin asked Mr. Sacco about handicap accessibility.  Mr. Sacco replied that the 
surfaces would be compatible with a wheelchair, and that A.D.A. guidelines for grading would 
be met.  Commissioner Lindstrom asked if they would have access from the existing parking lot. 
Mr. Sacco replied that a wheelchair would have access by using the existing and proposed 
pathways.  Secretary Martin asked how a wheelchair would maneuver over stone dust.  Mr. 
Sacco said that the path would be resilient enough for a wheelchair to operate properly on.  



Meeting Minutes Planning and Zoning Commission 
September 17, 2015 Monroe, Connecticut 

Page 7 of 13 

Both Secretary Martin and Commissioner Lindstrom requested Mr. Sacco to ensure the path 
would be A.D.A. compliant. 
 
Chairman O’Hara opened the application to public comment, advising that this presentation 
would be continued at the next Commission meeting. 
 
Mr. Lee Hossler, of 272 Stanley Road, had concerns with parking accessibility.  He stated that 
transporting athletic equipment over the distance from the parking lot to the proposed athletic 
fields would be a burden.  He also said that the elderly would have a long walk from the 
proposed athletic fields to use the existing bathrooms.  He added that the overflow parking lot 
was neither graded nor marked, making organized parking difficult. 
 
Chairman O’Hara asked Mr. Sacco if he had any other comments.  Mr. Sacco reviewed the 
concerns of the Commission so that they may be addressed at the next Commission meeting. 
Hearing no objections, Chairman O’Hara adjourned the public hearing to be reconvened again 
on October 15, 2015. 
 
 
SEP-2015-16, File #1567A: 482-484 Pepper Street – Use Change: CrossFit / Kids on the Moon 
(reconvened from 09/03/2015) 
 
Secretary Martin read the Notice of the Public Hearing.  Chairman O’Hara interjected the 
proceeding to request that two guests of the meeting be entered into the record. 
 
Mr. James Stead, of 66 Pepper Street, and Mr. Christopher Stead, also of 66 Pepper Street, 
introduced themselves as members of Boy Scout Troop 62. 
 
Planner Agresta listed added Exhibit 17. 
 
Chairman O’Hara asked Staff to verify that 2012 permit issues had been fulfilled.  Planner 
Agresta stated that Land Use Office Staff have been working with the property owner, and 
commented that the site had been cleaned up, the equipment had been removed, striping and 
landscaping have been installed, and the dumpster had been fixed.  He added that the one 
outstanding issue, which was only seasonal, was that some of the planters along two sides of 
building needed to be fixed. 
 
Vice-Chairman Porter inquired if there was an easement issue. Planner Agresta said there are 
two potential easement issues.  One of them involves a gas line which the applicant can fix 
through a condition of approval; the other involves pavement encroachments over the property. 
 
Vice-Chairman Porter had a concern regarding the tenant submitting the application.  He 
recalled that the previous and current applications regarding this property have had two 
different applicants.  Planner Agresta stated that the Zoning Regulations require that if there are 
issues with non-compliance, the Commission cannot approve a plan that does not include the 
resolution of the non-compliance issues as part of the plan.  Chairman O’Hara added that the 
owner must sign off on the application. 
 



Meeting Minutes Planning and Zoning Commission 
September 17, 2015 Monroe, Connecticut 

Page 8 of 13 

Planner Agresta commented that applications are site specific, not owner or applicant specific. 
The owner of a property is ultimately responsible for all compliance. 
 
Chairman O’Hara asked if the other Commissioners had questions regarding this application.  He 
then asked Mr. Kevin Solli if he had anything else to present.  Kevin Solli, of Solli Engineering, 
Licensed Professional Engineer in the State of Connecticut, said he had a letter from the 
property owner saying the owner has been working with the Monroe Land Use Office Staff to 
make sure the property is properly maintained.  He handed in the letter as Exhibit 18. 
 
Chairman O’Hara opened the application to public comment, which there was none. 
 
Polling the Commission hearing no objections, Chairman O’Hara closed the public hearing. 

 
 
SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
6. SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN – None 
 
 
DELIBERATIONS and DETERMINATIONS 
 
7. PERMIT AMENDMENTS / MODIFICATIONS / EXTENSIONS: 
 
 

SEP-2015-01, File # 1551A:  5 Victoria Drive – Request for a ninety (90) day extension to 
complete final plans. 
 
OWNER: Mark Christo, Victoria Drive Associates, LLC 
APPLICANT: CrossFit 
MOTION: Porter – To grant a ninety (90) day extension to meet conditions of approval. 
SECOND: Martin 
DISCUSSION: None 
VOTE:  5-0-0 - Approved 
Ayes  O’Hara, Porter, Martin, Townson, Lindstrom 
Nays  None 
Abstain  None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes Planning and Zoning Commission 
September 17, 2015 Monroe, Connecticut 

Page 9 of 13 

SEP-2014-13, File # 1549A: 462,464,466,470 Main Street – Request for a ninety (90) day 
extension to complete final plans. 
 
OWNER: JV 462 Main Street LLC 
APPLICANT: JV 462 Main Street LLC 
MOTION: Porter – To grant a ninety (90) day extension to meet conditions of approval. 
SECOND: Martin 
VOTE:  5-0-0 - Approved 
Ayes  O’Hara, Porter, Martin, Townson, Lindstrom 
Nays  None 
Abstain  None 
 

8. BOND RELEASES AND / OR REDUCTIONS – None 
 
9. MEETING MINUTES 

 
08/20/15 Meeting Minutes 
MOTION: Porter – Approve draft minutes with any changes as be discussed. 
SECOND: Martin 
DISCUSSION: None 
VOTE:  4-0-1 – Approved 
Ayes  O’Hara, Porter, Martin, Townson 
Nays  None 
Abstain  Lindstrom 
 
 
09/03/15 Meeting Minutes 
MOTION: Porter – Approve draft minutes with changes as may be discussed. 
SECOND: Martin 
DISCUSSION: Commissioner Lindstrom requested the minutes be amended to reflect the 

Chairman leaving because he did not think the discussion was appropriate.  
Vice-Chairman Porter believed the Chairman did not state why he left.  
Chairman O’Hara indicated he did not want to engage in the activity and 
requested the Commission to let Secretary Martin write the requested letter.  
No changes to the minutes were deemed needed.  On a different matter, Vice-
Chairman Porter requested the minutes be amended to reflect his statement 
regarding 5 Victoria Drive and the amount of time that the applicant would 
need before submitting an application to the Inland Wetlands Commission. 

VOTE: 5-0-0 – Approved, as amended 
Ayes O’Hara, Porter, Martin, Townson, Lindstrom 
Nays None 
Abstain None 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes Planning and Zoning Commission 
September 17, 2015 Monroe, Connecticut 

Page 10 of 13 

10. APPLICATION DELIBERATIONS / DETERMINATIONS 
 
RAA-2015-01, File # 972E: Proposed amendments to the Zoning Regulations Section 3.5 Elderly 
Residence District, Beaver Brook, LLC 
 
OWNER: NA – Zoning Text Amendment 
APPLICANT: Beaver Brook, LLC 
MOTION: Porter – To approve RAA-2015-01, proposed Zoning Regulation text 

amendments: “ER District becomes ARR District” as outlined in the Draft dated 
09/17/15. 

SECOND: Townson 
DISCUSSION: Vice-Chairman Porter addressed the comments regarding the general public‘s 

concerns of increased density and expanding elderly residence districts 
subsequent to the approval of the regulation.  Vice-Chairman stated that the 
regulation does not allow single-family dwellings to be in the same complex as 
multi-family dwellings.  He also stated that the addition to this regulation 
reduces the density that is allowed.  Chairman O’Hara added that septic systems 
and conversions to create extra bedrooms were a concern of the general public.  
Chairman O’Hara also summarized the Draft approval document. 

VOTE: 4-0-1 – Approved 
Ayes O’Hara, Porter, Martin, Townson 
Nays None 
Abstain Lindstrom 
 
 
SDP-2015-04, File # 116:  448 Pepper Street – Office expansion and off-street parking, Really 
Good Stuff 
 
OWNER: Really Good Stuff, LLC 
APPLICANT: Really Good Stuff, LLC 
MOTION: Porter – To approve SDP-2015-04-A1 as outlined in the Draft Site Development 

Plan Approval dated 09/17/15, as amended. 
SECOND: Martin 
DISCUSSION: Chairman O’Hara and Vice-Chairman Porter requested clarification of the need 

for the drainage pipe relocation should the Pepper Street improvements 
address the existing stormwater from the street, to which Staff indicated same 
would not be necessary in that event, resulting in a change to the draft to 
reflect same.  Chairman O’Hara also summarized and clarified the stated bond 
amounts and timing of bond releases given the phasing of the project, resulting 
in no changes to the draft. 

VOTE: 4-0-1 – Approved 
Ayes O’Hara, Porter, Martin, Townson 
Nays None 
Abstain Lindstrom 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes Planning and Zoning Commission 
September 17, 2015 Monroe, Connecticut 

Page 11 of 13 

SEP-2015-16, File #1567A: 482-484 Pepper Street – Use Change: CrossFit / Kids on the Moon 
 
Commissioner Lindstrom began deliberations stating her concern about the ability for the 
bounce houses to be cleaned after a possible accident.  She wanted to know if the State has any 
specific requirements. Commissioner Townson commented that he believed there were not any 
State requirements, but he reviewed three different cleaning procedures from companies that 
use different disinfectants and ammonia-based cleaners.  Chairman O’Hara confirmed with Staff 
that the applicant represented that there would be no outdoor cleaning without further permit 
approval. Vice-Chairman clarified that the Planning and Zoning Commission does not have 
jurisdiction relating to cleanliness, but they can determine how the site can and cannot be used.  
Chairman O’Hara added that the property is adjacent to a wetland, and stated that the 
Conditions of Approval should include no outdoor cleaning. 
 
Chairman O’Hara asked if an altered parking ratio was agreed upon. Planner Agresta replied that 
the applicant (CrossFit) is requesting a use-specific parking standard of 1.5 spaces per class 
participant.  The Chairman asked the Commission if the terms of the use-specific standard were 
acceptable, which the Commission unanimously thought was acceptable. 
 
Chairman O’Hara added that the wells would need to be shown to have been appropriately 
abandoned, and that staff comments about signage and floor plan access be addressed.  
Chairman O’Hara wanted to make sure the conditions of the last permit were satisfied. 
 
Chairman O’Hara asked about drafting the Conditions of Approval to address the use of soaps 
and cleansers.  He wanted to include language that the site would be regularly monitored by the 
Inland Wetlands Inspector, and that fines instead of warnings would be levied if there were 
issues of non-compliance.  Vice-Chairman Porter suggested that should not be included in the 
SEP Approval.  Chairman O’Hara refined the language he initially proposed.  Vice-Chairman 
Porter addressed the need for a Wetlands Approval. 
 
Chairman O’Hara asked Vice-Chairman Porter if he would include language about the seasonal 
planters.  Vice-Chairman Porter said he saw the planters were in place.  Planner Agresta added 
that all of the planters except two were empty, and that some of the planters needed to be 
fixed or replaced.  He said he received a planting scheme for the spring and fall from the 
applicant which was acceptable. 
 
Chairman O’Hara asked the Commission if they application was being approved, to which they 
unanimously replied yes and directed Staff to prepare a draft for future consideration. 

 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
11. REGULATIONS REVIEW / AMENDMENT WORKSESSION 

 
RAA-2015-02, File #973E:  - DRAFT General Text Amendments 
 
Planner Agresta said that he had met with Town Attorney Fracassini to discuss his review, and 
that Town Attorney Fracassini was satisfied with the language of the text amendments. 



Meeting Minutes Planning and Zoning Commission 
September 17, 2015 Monroe, Connecticut 

Page 12 of 13 

Planner Agresta stated that the Town Attorney’s comments for the notification requirements 
were to give notice to the paper.  Attorney Fracassini had cautioned not to do anything overly 
different.  The Commissioners discussed the level of notification.  Planner Agresta said that a 
press release would be preferable to individual notices.  Chairman O’Hara asked if anyone 
offered a motion to make an alternative notification process.  Commissioner Lindstrom said she 
liked the idea of a press release over individual notices.  Vice-Chairman Porter commented that 
the standard notification process is in place, and that the Commission should follow the 
standard notification process to avoid legal issues.  Secretary Martin suggested that the internet 
could be used.  Planner Agresta said that the text amendments are included on the Town’s 
Website already, and eventually he would like to put all the projects on the web as well. 
Chairman O’Hara said that the use of the internet takes advantage of modern technology. 
Commissioner Lindstrom asked if press releases should be made by the Commission.  Planner 
Agresta replied that press releases could be handled administratively.  Commissioner Townson 
asked if the Commission had issued press releases in the past.  Chairman O’Hara replied that 
Monroe should keep moving forward, and referenced a previous public hearing where a 
majority of the heard information was incorrect.  He added that those of the public who are 
interested will come forth to the Commission, and that consistency in terms of distributing 
information and running the meetings will avoid any legal issues.  Secretary Martin added her 
concerns that a press release would not accomplish anything, especially if some people do not 
have access to the newspaper, and that the internet could help. 
 
Planner Agresta said the Town Attorney was uncomfortable about the variance aspect because 
variances run with the land.  He added further discussion about his conversation with the Town 
Attorney regarding various issues associated with variances. 
 
Polling the Commission hearing no objections, Chairman O’Hara directed Staff to schedule the 
matter for public hearing. 

 
12. CORRESPONDENCE/OTHER RECEIVED – None 
 
13. COMMISSIONER’S REPORTS 
 

• Chairman’s Report -  Chairman O’Hara informed the Commission of Land Use 
Coordinator Bombero’s hiring as Executive Assistant to the First Selectman.  He thanked 
her for her years of hard work, and congratulated her in her new assignment. 
 
Chairman O’Hara then added his observations with regards to the Handsome Ink 
Lawsuit. 
 
Chairman O’Hara then informed the Commission that the approved Wal-Mart expects to 
break ground in the spring. 
 

• Commissioner’s Reports – Commissioner Lindstrom commented on the Commission’s 
copies of the letter that Chairman O’Hara sent to Selectman Vavrek regarding a request 
from Attorney Fracassini.  Chairman O’Hara replied that Attorney Fracassini has not 
been able to respond. 



Meeting Minutes Planning and Zoning Commission 
September 17, 2015 Monroe, Connecticut 

Page 13 of 13 

• Land Use Staff Reports – Planner Agresta informed the Commission of a request relating 
to the reconstruction on a section of Barn Hill Road between Route 111 and East Village 
Road.  The Public Works Department and Town Engineer Schatzlein would like to 
informally discuss the project and get constructive input from the Commission at the 
next Planning and Zoning Commission meeting. 
 
Planner Agresta also informed the Commission of the replacement “in-kind” of a culvert 
on Garder Road.  He advised that under the ordinance for scenic roads, the replacement 
does not need to be presented to the Commission. 
 
Commissioner Lindstrom asked if there were any major issues the Commission had 
regarding the work on Garder Road, and if the Commission had any input.  The 
Commission, Town Engineer Schatzlein, and Planner Agresta briefly discussed the 
delegation associated with scenic roads. 
 
Planner Agresta informed the Commission of an application similar to the Elderly 
Residence zoning text amendment in the neighboring Town of Newtown which was 
rejected. 

 
14. MEETING AJOURNMENT 

 
With no objections, Chairman O’Hara adjourned the meeting at 9:05 p.m. 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
David McCollum, Recording Secretary 











































COPY



COPY



COPY



COPY



COPY



COPY



COPY



COPY



COPY



COPY



COPY



COPY



COPY




